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ADDENDUM #1 
STATE OF MONTANA – DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - NRDP 

MULLAN TRAIL CULVERT & FISH BARRIER 
MONTANA NATURAL RESOURCE DAMAGE PROGRAM NO.10 

 
DATE OF ADDENDUM:  January 21, 2016 
 
DATE BIDS ARE DUE:   January 25, 2016 
 
TIME BIDS ARE DUE:   3:00 p.m. 
 
LOCATION OF BID SUBMITTAL: NRDP Office 

1720 9th Avenue 
Helena, MT 59620-1425 

TO ALL PLANHOLDERS: 
This addendum shall serve to modify the Project Manual for the Mullan Trail Culvert & Fish 
Barrier project as follows: 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE MINUTES & SIGN IN SHEET: 
Attached is a summary of the meeting minutes and sign in sheet from the Pre-Bid meeting for 
the Mullan Trail Culvert & Fish Barrier project, held on January 14th, 2016. 
 
ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS FROM POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 
Attached is a list of answers to questions from potential bidders.  
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDUM #1 
All bidders shall acknowledge receipt of Addendum #1 in the Bid Form and on the Bid 
Package Envelope.  Any Bid in which all issued addenda are not acknowledged may be 
considered incomplete. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
Great West Engineering, Inc. 

 
 
 
 

Ryan Elliott, PE      
Project Engineer   
 
Enc: Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes w/Sign in Sheet 
 Answers to questions from potential bidders 
CC: Planholders List 
 



 STATE OF MONTANA – DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - NRDP 

MULLAN TRAIL CULVERT & FISH BARRIER (HARVEY CREEK) 

MONTANA NATURAL RESOURCE DAMAGE PROGRAM NO.10 

PRE-BID CONFERENCE – MEETING MINUTES 

January 14th, 2016, 11:00 AM 

 

 

1. General discussion of the project 

a. Remove and dispose of existing culvert & fish barrier 

b. Structure excavation 

c. Installation of County-supplied granular bedding material 

d. 8’ span x 5’ Rise Precast 4-Sided Box Culvert with sloped end sections 

i. Includes curbs, cutoff walls and wingwalls 

ii. Sloped end sections serve as the fish barrier 

e. Installation of on-site backfill material 

f. Installation of County-supplied riprap 

g. Nested W-Rail section over culvert with 25’-0” flared approach guardrail end sections 

h. The finish grade of the new culvert is approximately 1’ higher than existing ground. 

i. Staging areas 

j. County will supply and install crushed aggregate surface course, and will supply riprap 

and supply culvert bedding material. 

 

2. Bid Date 

a. January 25th, 2016 until 3:00 PM local time at 1720 9th Avenue, Helena, MT, 59620 and 

then publicly opened and read aloud 

 

3. Bonding Requirements 

a. Bid Security in amount of 10% of total maximum bid 

i. Security may be certified check, cashier’s check, or bid bond.  Must meet 

requirements of MCA 18-2-302 and MCA 18-1-201. 

 

4. Bid Proposal & Submittal 

a. Complete bid sheets and signature page, and Montana Contractor’s License No. 

b. Acknowledgement of any addenda 

c. Bid security 

d. List of proposed Suppliers and Subcontractors may be requested after the bid 

e. Submittal of bid shall meet requirements in instruction to bidders. Unbound copy of 

the bid form submitted with bid security and other documents required in the bid 

form.  

 

5. Insurance and Bonding 

a. $3,000,000 aggregate liability 

b. Payment and Performance Bonds 

c. See Section 00800 for insurance requirements 

 

6. Contract Time 

a. 60 calendar days  

b. Project milestone – Work must be substantially complete by April 29th, 2016.  



c. Winter shutdowns are not allowed – See special provision SP-14 

d. Working hours: 7AM to 7PM 

 

7. Contractor Qualifications 

a. See Special Provision SP-2 

b. At least 5 projects successfully completed within the last ten years similar in size and 

scope of work 

 

8. Funding Partners 

a. Natural Resource Damage Program 

b. Granite County  

 

9. Utilities 

a. Contractor responsible for all utility locates and coordination  

b. Underground fiber optic and phone lines shown on plans have been relocated upstream 

near the fence. Refer to notes on the drawings. 

c. One Call 1-800-424-5555 

 

10. Permits 

a. See Special Provision SP-15 

b. Contractor required to carry out all provisions of permits obtained 

c. Stream permits that are pending: 

i. 124 Permit (FWP) 

ii. 318 Permit (MDEQ) 

iii. 404 Permit (ACOE) 

d. Contractor may be required to obtain MPDES – Construction Dewatering Permit 

 

11. Easements 

a. County road easement is 60 feet (30 feet on either side of roadway centerline) 

b. If additional easement is needed for material or equipment storage, contractor is 

responsible for obtaining 

 

12. Staking Responsibilities 

a. See Special Provision SP-13 

i. The Engineer will provide the following staking: beginning & end of roadway, 

box culvert and sloped end section inlet and outlet (with two offsets), beginning 

and end of streamwork, outlet riprap (four locations) 

13. Dewatering 

a. See Special Provision SP-11 

i. Contractor responsible for development of dewatering plan  

ii. All dewatering work is paid under unclassified excavation and embankment 

 

14. Testing Responsibilities 

a. See Special Provision SP-12 

i. Contractor responsible for all testing and quality control 

ii. GWE to perform additional quality assurance as necessary 

 

 



15. Traffic Control 

a. See Special Provision SP-20 

b. Road may be closed during the construction period 

c. Must meet MUTCD requirements 

d. Contractor to provide road closure barricades on each side of the structure 

e. Contractor to provide advance detour signs (with approval from the County) 

 

16. Payment Procedures 

a. Payment will be made monthly. 

b. State Prevailing Wage Rates – Highway, 38 miles from the Missoula County 

Courthouse 

c. Certified payroll submitted to NRDP with pay application 

 

17. Other 

a. Contractor responsible for fencing (removal, temporary and resetting) during project (see 

Plans & Special Provisions) 

b. County will supply some material for project – contractor will install 

i. Culvert bedding material 

ii. MDT class II riprap 

iii. Contractor must notify Mark Teague (County Road Supervisor) when they would 

like materials delivered to the site 

 







Montana Natural Resource Damage Program No. 10 
Mullan Trail Culvert & Fish Barrier 

Answers to Questions from Potential Bidders 
 

1. Please clarify the intent of Article 4.04 Special Damages.  This seems to contradict 
Article 4.03 Liquidated Damages that states “ The parties also recognize the delays, 
expense, and difficulties involved in proving the actual loss suffered by Owner if the 
Work is not completed on time, and agree that it would be impracticable or extremely 
difficult to fix actual damages in advance.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any such 
proof, the parties have agreed on the following sum presumed to be the daily amount of 
damaged for delay (but not as a penalty):” 
 
Answer: There is no contradiction. Article 4.04 special damages are “after-the-fact” 
determinations, not “pre-bid” determinations such as called for in 4.03.  
 

2. Article 4.04 Special Damages states a date of April 15 to complete work.  Please clarify. 
 
Answer: In Section 00500 (Agreement), Section 4.04 Special Damages should read… 
“including failure to complete work by April 29….” 

 
3. The work will require removal of existing vegetation, possibly including trees.  Please 

clarify the requirements of specification section 02232 Site Clearing, paragraph 3.2 Tree 
Protection as it applies to this project. 
 
Answer: No specific vegetation has been identified for removal or protection within 
the Construction Limits. It is assumed that any vegetation within the Construction 
Limits may be removed. All vegetation (shrubs and trees) outside of the 
Construction Limits shall be protected. 
 

4. What are acceptable methods for disposal of any woody debris removed for 
construction?   
 
Answer: If woody debris are encountered and need removal, it is explained in 
Section 01275, Measurement and Payment, Bid Item No.3 C.2.o,… “legally dispose 
of excess spoil, debris, and rubbish”.  
 

5. Is rock excavation anticipated on this project?  If rock excavation is required, how will 
the contractor be compensated? 
 
Answer: Rock excavation is not anticipated for this project. If bedrock is found 
during construction and impacts the construction of the project, Contractor shall 
notify the Owner and Engineer promptly. Refer to Section C-700, Standard General 
Conditions, Article 5.  
 
 
 



6. Is proof rolling of the subgrade required as specified in 02300.3.6 Subgrade Excavation? 
 
Answer: Refer to Special Provision, Section 00910, SP-12, original ground and 
native subgrade require compaction with mechanical tampers until surface 
deformation is no longer visible.  
 

7. Please provide flow data for Harvey creek. 
 
Answer: Because Harvey Creek does not have a stream gage located on the 
drainage, as such, accurate base flow data per Month for Harvey Creek is not 
available. However, USGS regression equations were utilized for the drainage, 
which revealed the following flood frequency discharge estimates: 
2-year return interval: 61 cfs 
5-year return interval: 115 cfs 
10-year return interval: 159 cfs 
 

8. Please clarify section 02300, paragraphs 3.14 Subsurface Drainage and 3.15 Drainage 
Course requirements for this project. 
 
Answer: Paragraphs 3.14 Subsurface Drainage and 3.15 Drainage Course do not 
apply to this project. 
 

9. The bid documents talk about a geo tech report, is there one available and how can I get 
it? 
 
Answer: No geotechnical investigation was completed at the project site. Refer to 
Note 1 on the Sheet 3 of the Drawings. 
 

10. If we do the project before April 29th and there is a lot of frost can we [break] those 
chunks up and use it for fill? 
 
Answer: It is anticipated that 80% of excavated material will be useable for backfill.  
Refer to Note 1 on Sheet 3 of the Drawings. Also, refer to Section 02300, Earthwork, 
Part 2.1.I, “…free of…frozen lumps”.  
 

11. Due to the concern of water run off in the spring due to snow melt it would make sense to 
do the project as soon as possible, but with the cold it would be very difficult to get good 
compaction testing. What is recommended? 
 
Answer: The Contractor is responsible for their own means and methods for the 
removal, stockpile and reinstallation of the on-site excavated material for use as 
backfill material.  
 

12. The county will be delivering the bedding material and it will be exposed to the cold, 
probably with frozen chunks, it will not pass a compaction test, what is recommended? 
 



Answer: The bedding material supplied by the County will be free of frozen 
material. Compaction means and methods are the responsibility of the Contractor. 
No testing of material is required. Visual inspection will occur by Owner. 
 

13. Does the county want the old culvert or is that the contractors to deal with? 
Answer: As stated in Section 01275-Measurement and Payment – Bid Item No.2, 
removal and disposal of the culvert and fish barrier is the Contractor’s 
responsibility, and all work for this is paid under the bid item. 
 

14. In contract document 4.02 it says completion date of April 29th and in 4.04 it says April 
15th for completion date, which is correct? 
 
Answer: Refer to question #2 above.  
 

15. The engineer will come out and mark the location of the culverts etc, will they come back 
and mark out the guard rail after back fill of the box culvert or do they only mark one 
time? 
 
Answer: As shown in Special Provisions, Section 00910, SP-13, no staking of the 
guardrail will occur and is the responsibility of the Contractor.  All staking 
completed by the Engineer as referenced in SP-13 will be completed once, any other 
staking is the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 

16. Is any of the work area planned outside of the county Easement? 
 
Answer: All work on the project shall occur within the County roadway easement 
or within the stream channel. 
 

17. Is the use of the County Right-of-Way acceptable for stockpiling of materials? 
 
 Answer: Yes, the County Right-of-Way is acceptable for stockpiling of materials. 
 

18.  Can the road be closed during construction? 
  
 Answer: Please refer to Special Provisions, Section 00910, SP-20. 
 

19. Is the use of a certified dump site for Creosote soaked timbers required? 
 
 Answer: Contractor must comply with all Federal, State, and Local regulations 
 regarding the disposal of Creosote soaked timbers. 
 

20. How will the NRDP evaluate experience under SP-02? 
 

Answer: “Experience” under article 3 of the Invitation to Bid and Special 
Provisions, Section 00910, SP-02 will be determined by owner on the basis of 
experience of the bidder and its primary project personnel.  



 
21. When is the dewatering plan due? 

 
Answer: The contract documents do not state a date by which the plan is due; 
however, as stated in Special Provisions, Section 00910, SP-11 the plan must be 
submitted ten (10) calendar days before dewatering can commence. It is the 
contractor’s responsibility to submit the plan in a timely manner so that project 
work is not delayed. 

 
22. Can excess excavated material not used for backfill be provided to the County? 

 
Answer: It is the Contractor’s responsibility to reach an agreement with the County 
about providing any excess materials back to the County. The material must be 
taken to an agreed-upon legal site in a lawful manner. All excess spoil is the 
responsibility of the Contractor for disposal. 

 
23. What is the location of the bedding and the rip-rap? Are we required to load and haul? 

 
 Answer: The County will procure and deliver bedding material and rip rap to the 
 project site. 
 

24. For the structural fill will the contractor be allowed to screen out oversized boulders? 
 

Answer: It is anticipated that 80% of excavated material will be useable for backfill.  
Refer to Note 1 on Sheet 3 of the Drawings. Also, refer to Section 02300, Earthwork, 
Part 2.1.I, “….Maximum particle size cannot exceed 6 inches. 

 
25. Is it the Contractor’s responsibility to provide a proctor for County-supplied bedding 

material? 
 
 Answer: No proctor will be obtained on the county-supplied bedding material.  Per 
 the Measure and Payment Section 01275, the contractor is responsible for 
 “blending, watering, and compacting” the bedding material. 
 

26. What is included in the nested guardrail system? 
 

Answer: The nested guardrail system consists of 2-layers of w-rail section. No 
specific details of the nested guardrail system are shown in Appendix B. However, 
requirements for the nested guardrail system shall be the same as those shown for 
Double Layer of W-Beam Guardrail in Appendix B.  
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MULLAN TRAIL CULVERT & FISH BARRIER 
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Natural Resource Damage Program 
PO Box 201425 
Helena, MT 59620 
 
Bozeman Plan Exchange 
1105 Reeves Rd. West, Suite 800 
Bozeman, MT 59718 
Phone: 406-586-7653 
Fax: 406-586-4062 
exchange@bozemanplanroom.com 
 
Butte Builders Exchange 
4801 Hope Road 
Butte, MT  59701 
Phone: 406-782-5433 
Fax: 406-782-5433 
butteplans@gmail.com 
 
Missoula Plan Exchange 
201 North Russell Street 
Missoula MT  59801 
Phone: 406-549-5002 
Fax: 406-721-2941 
mpe@vemcoinc.com 
 
Helena Copy Center 
1530 Cedar St., Suite C 
Helena MT  59601 
Phone: 406-457-2679 
Fax: 406-457-0226 
helenacopy@gmail.com 
 
Montana Civil Contractors, Inc. 
Bob Koch 
PO Box 1019 
Belgrade, MT 59714 
Phone: 406-388-1740 
bobk@montanacivil.com 
 
Spokane Regional Plan Center 
Jenny Martin 
209 N Havana 
Spokane, WA 99202 
Phone: 509-328-9600 
projectinfo@plancenter.net 
 

Idaho AGC 
Kristy Watson 
1649 W. Shoreline Drive, Suite 100 
Boise, ID 83702 
Phone: 208-344-2531 
kwatson@idahoagc.org 
 
Hertz Contracting, LLC 
4055 MT Hwy 1 
Philipsburg, MT 59858 
Phone: 406-880-1889 
lhertz@montana.com 
 
Patterson Enterprises 
Josh Patterson 
3790 Hwy 200 East 
Missoula, MT 59808 
josh@peiconstruction.com 
 
Geranios Enterprises, Inc. 
Scott Gossard 
PO Box 2543 
Great Falls, MT 59403 
Phone: 406-727-3430 
scott@g-e-inc.com 
 
Dodge Data & Analytics 
Angela Richard 
7265 Kenwood Road, Suite 200 
Cincinnati, OH 45236 
Phone: 513-763-3638 
dodge.docs@construction.com 
 
Nelcon, Inc. 
Michelle Dyon 
Box 5370 
Kalispell, MT 59903 
Phone: 406-756-8560 
michelle@nelcon.biz 
 
Knife River – Missoula 
4800 Wilke Road 
Missoula, MT 59808 
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Jeff Smyth Construction 
57489 Lower Crossing Rd 
St. Ignatius, MT 59865 
Phone: 406-546-1828 
smythconst@gmail.com 
 
Groomes Excavating, Inc. 
PO Box 13 
Philipsburg, MT 59858 
Phone: 406-859-3306 
 
Little Bear Construction 
1465 Drummond Frontage Road 
Clinton, MT 59825 
 
Deer Lodge Asphalt, Inc. 
1140 Kelley Street 
Deer Lodge, MT 59722 
Phone: 406-846-3730 
deerlodgeasphalt@gmail.com 
 
UIS, Inc. 
Robert McDonald 
433 North 1030 West 
Lindon, UT 84042 
Phone: 801-785-0505 
robert@uismail.com 
 
Wallace Structures 
Eric Wallace 
PO Box 629 
Fortuna, CA 95540 
Phone: 707-834-4994 
wallacestr@aol.com 
 
Smith Contracting, Inc. 
Lee Barron 
101 South Parkmont 
Butte, MT 59701 
Phone: 406-723-6740 
smithcontractinginc@yahoo.com 
 
 
 
 
 

Sandry Construction 
Mark Sandry 
200 Basin View Road 
Big Fork, MT 59911 
Phone: 406-752-2419 
mark@sandryconstruction.com 
 
Thompson Contracting 
Levi Thompson 
PO Box 449 
Libby, MT  59923 
Phone: 406-293-0600 
lthompsoncontracting@hotmail.com 
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